

# BYLAWS OF NORTHEASTERN ARIZONA SPORTSMANS ASSOCIATION

## ARTICLE I OFFICES

The principal office of the corporation in the State of Arizona shall be located at 32 Hogan Lane, County Road 5086, Concho, Apache County, Arizona, 85924. The corporation may have such other offices within the State of Arizona as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the corporation may require from time to time.

## ARTICLE II PURPOSE

The purpose of this organization shall be the encouragement of organized firearms shooting and archery among citizens of the United States residing in our community, with a view toward a better knowledge on the part of such citizens of the safe handling and proper care of firearms and archery equipment, through educational programs as well as improved marksmanship. The organization also wishes generally to encourage the lawful ownership and use of small arms by citizens of good repute and foster the conservation, better management, and wise use of our renewable wildlife resources. It shall be a further object and purpose to forward the development of those characteristics of honesty, good fellowship, self-discipline, team play, and self-reliance, which are the essentials of good sportsmanship and the foundation of true patriotism.

## ARTICLE III MEMBERS

**SECTION 1. Classes of Members:** The Corporation shall have only the classes of membership set forth in these Bylaws, regardless of race, age, sex, color, national origin, or religion.

**SECTION 2. Regular Members:**

- A. A Regular Member must be eighteen (18) years of age or older.
- B. All Members must subscribe to the following pledge:

*I certify that I am not a member of any organization or group having as its purpose or one of its purposes the overthrow by force and violence of the government of the United States or any of the political subdivisions thereof; that I have never been convicted of a crime of violence; and that if admitted to membership, I will fulfill the obligations of good sportsmanship and good citizenship and will abide by all the rules and by-laws of the Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association, Inc., and uphold the Second Amendment of the Constitution of the United States at all times.*

**SECTION 3. Approval of Members:** Regular Membership application shall be approved by a majority of a quorum of The Board of Directors at any regular meeting.

**SECTION 4. Voting Rights:** Each regular member in good standing above age 18 shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted by the Board of Directors to a vote of the members. In the event that a Family Membership consists of both a husband and wife, each of them shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the members.

**SECTION 5. Termination of Membership:** The Board of Directors, by a two-thirds (2/3<sup>rd</sup>) affirmative vote of the members of the Board, may suspend or expel a member for cause after an appropriate hearing. The Board may, by a simple majority vote, terminate the membership of any member who becomes ineligible for membership or suspend or expel any member who shall be in default in the contribution of any monies or materials owed to the corporation for the period fixed in Article XII of these by-laws.

**SECTION 6. Resignation:** Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Secretary, but such resignation shall not relieve the member so resigning of the obligation to pay any assessments or other charges theretofore accrued and unpaid.

**SECTION 7. Reinstatement:** Upon a written request signed by a former member and filed with the Secretary, the Board of Directors may, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board, reinstate such former member to membership upon such terms as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.

**SECTION 8. Transfer of Membership:** Membership in this corporation is not transferable or assignable.

**SECTION 9. Family Memberships:** Family Memberships shall be available which may include a husband and wife and any unmarried children under the age of eighteen (18) years living in the family's home.

**SECTION 10. Range Fees:** All members shall pay for such items as targets, match fees, etc. as set from time to time by the Board of Directors. Nonmembers shall pay all appropriate fees as determined by the Board of Directors.

**SECTION 11. Honorary Memberships:** Honorary Memberships may be issued by the Board of Directors for the current year only. Honorary Members shall not be entitled to vote on the affairs of this corporation. Honorary Members shall not be members of the board of directors.

**SECTION 12. Sponsored Junior Division Members:** Persons between the ages of 10 years and 18 years of age shall be eligible for membership in the Junior Division of this corporation when sponsored by a regular member of this corporation and approved pursuant to Section 3 of this Article. A Junior Member shall have full use of the corporation's facilities while under the supervision of an adult member but shall have no voting privileges or other voice in the management of this corporation. However, written permission from parent(s) or guardian is required for membership.

**SECTION 13. Charges Against a Member:** Charges against any member in regards to the bylaws, rules, regulations, or operating procedures may be brought by any regular or junior member in good standing. The charges shall be in writing, clearly stating the facts relied upon, and accompanied by all affidavits or exhibits which are to be used in support thereof. Such charges shall be filed with the Secretary of this corporation, who will immediately notify the President. The President shall call a special meeting of the Board of Directors at which meeting the accusing member and the accused member may appear. Notice of this special meeting shall be given pursuant to the provisions of these Bylaws to the accusing member and the accused member and shall include a true copy of the charges and of the supporting affidavits and exhibits.

**SECTION 14. Appeal to the Membership:** Any regular or junior member suspended or expelled by the Board of Directors may appeal such suspension or expulsion to the full membership of this corporation. Such appeal shall be made in writing to the Secretary, who will notify the President. The President shall then call a special meeting of this corporation for the purpose of acting on the appeal. The Secretary shall give notice as set forth in Article IV, Section 4 to all members of this corporation in good standing stating the date, time, place, and reason for such special meeting. At the meeting of the members of this corporation, the Secretary shall read the original charges, the supporting affidavits, and shall read or display the accompanying exhibits, and shall read the minutes of the special meeting of the Board of Directors at which the charges were heard and action taken. The members present may allow a full hearing to the accused member and the accusing member or by majority vote may decide to allow for only an abbreviated hearing. After the hearing and a review of the evidence presented, a vote will be taken by ballot of the members in good standing present and a two-thirds (2/3<sup>rd</sup>) majority shall be required to reverse the action of the Board of Directors.

#### **ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF MEMBERS**

**SECTION 1. Nominations of Board:** The nomination process for officers to be elected shall occur on the 2<sup>nd</sup> Friday of October regular meeting, and the announcement of nominations shall occur on the 2<sup>nd</sup> Friday of November regular meeting.

**SECTION 2. Annual Meeting:** An annual meeting of the membership shall be held on the second Friday in the month of December in each year at the hour of 7:00 o'clock P.M. or at such other time as is set by the Board of Directors, for the purpose of electing officers and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the election of officers shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the members as soon thereafter as may be conveniently convened. The Board of Directors may choose to conduct the election by mail and may apply appropriate authentication methods to ensure the validity of the results. Meetings shall be conducted according to the current Robert's Rules of Order to the best of the directors' ability.

**SECTION 3. Special Meetings:** Special meetings of the members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or by not less than one-tenth of the members having voting rights. Meetings shall be conducted according to the current Robert's Rules of Order to the best of the directors' ability.

**SECTION 4. Place of Meeting:** The Board of Directors may designate any place within the State of Arizona, as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the Board of Directors. If no designation is made or if a special meeting be otherwise called, the place of meeting shall be the registered office of the corporation in the State of Arizona, but if all the members shall meet at any time and place within the State of Arizona and consent to the holding of a meeting, such meeting shall be valid without call or notice, and at such meeting any corporate action may be taken.

**SECTION 5. Notice of Meetings:** Written notice stating the place, day and hour of any meeting of members shall be delivered either personally or by mail to each member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than ten nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of such meeting by or at the direction of the President, the Secretary, the officers, or persons calling the meeting. In case of a special meeting or when required by statute or by these by-laws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States Mail and addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation with postage thereon prepaid. Members may choose to be notified by electronic means. If a member agrees to electronic notification, they may be notified in that manner.

**SECTION 6. Quorum:** A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of members, a majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

**SECTION 7. Proxies:** At any meeting of members, a member entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing by the member or by the member's "duly authorized attorney-in-fact." Proxy shall be valid only for vote in question.

**SECTION 8. Manner of Acting:** A majority of the votes entitled to be cast on a matter to be voted upon by the members present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be necessary for the adoption thereof unless a greater proportion is required by law or by these Bylaws.

**SECTION 9. Voting by Mail:** Where Directors or officers are to be elected by members, such election may be, but need not be, conducted by mail in such manner as the Board of Directors shall determine.

## **ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

**SECTION 1. General Powers:** The day-to-day affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. Directors need not be residents of the State of Arizona, but must be regular members in good standing of this corporation.

**SECTION 2. Number, Tenure, and Qualifications:** The Board of Directors shall consist of the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, three Executive Officers, elected as provided in Article VI, Section 2 of these Bylaws. Each Director shall hold office until the next annual meeting of members and until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified. Each Director shall be a member in good standing of the National Rifle Association (hereafter referred to as NRA).

**SECTION 3. Regular Meetings:** A regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than this Bylaw, immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of members. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place within the State of Arizona for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board without other notice than such resolution. Meetings shall be conducted according to the current Robert's Rules of Order to the best of the directors' ability.

**SECTION 4. Special Meetings:** Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix any place within the State of Arizona as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them. Meetings shall be conducted according to the current Robert's Rules of Order to the best of the directors' ability.

**SECTION 5. Quorum:** A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but if less than a majority of the Directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

**SECTION 6. Manner of Acting:** The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

**SECTION 7. Vacancies:** Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors consisting of the President, Vice-President Secretary, Treasurer, three Executive Officers, and any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. A Director selected to fill a vacancy shall be appointed for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

**SECTION 8. Compensation:** Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be construed to preclude any Director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore. Any Board decision to authorize special compensation shall be rigorously reviewed to preclude even the appearance of conflict of interest.

**SECTION 9. Informal Action by Directors:** Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of directors, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors.

**SECTION 10. Conflict of Interest:** Any Director or member with a conflict of interest shall bring it to the attention of the Board and abstain from the matter. A conflict of interest shall be defined as any financial or other interest that would impair the individual's objectivity or create an unfair competitive advantage for any person or company that would result in a gain.

## **ARTICLE VI OFFICERS**

**SECTION 1. Officers:** The officers of the corporation shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, three Executive Officers, and such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. No elected officer shall serve for more than four (4) consecutive terms in the same office.

**SECTION 2. Election and Term of Office:** The officers of the corporation shall be elected annually by the members at the Regular Annual Meeting of the members. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the members. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected, qualified, and seated in office.

**SECTION 3. Division Chairman:** A Division Chairman shall represent each of the divisions established by the Board of Directors. A Division Chairman shall be appointed annually by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors and shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly appointed and shall have qualified.

**SECTION 4. Removal:** Any officer elected by the members or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the officer so removed.

**SECTION 5. Vacancies:** A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise may be filled as set forth in Article V, Section 7, above, by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

**SECTION 6. President:** The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors. He may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the corporation authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the corporation, and in general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time. He shall be an ex officio member of all regular and special committees.

**SECTION 7. Vice President:** In the absence of the President or in event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

**SECTION 8. Treasurer:** If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. He or she shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation, receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other

depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article IX of these Bylaws, and in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

**SECTION 9. Secretary:** The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose, see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law, be custodian of the Corporate Records and of the Seal of the Corporation, and see that the Seal of the Corporation is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, keep a register of the post-office address of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such member, and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President and by the Board of Directors.

**SECTION 10. Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries:** If required by the Board of Directors, the Assistant Treasurers shall give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and with such sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries, in general, shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Treasurer or the Secretary or by the President or Board of Directors.

**SECTION 11. Chief Instructor:** The Chief Instructor shall have charge of all small arms instruction with authority to appoint assistants subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. He shall be an NRA certified instructor in good standing.

**SECTION 12. Executive Officer:** The Executive Officer shall have responsibility for the acquisition, remodeling and construction of all ranges and facilities on, or pertaining to, said ranges. He may contract for goods and services as may be reasonably necessary for the normal operation of the ranges. He shall have the authority to appoint such assistants as he deems necessary for the normal operation of the ranges, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

## **ARTICLE VII DIVISIONS**

**SECTION 1. Shooting Committees:** The committees of this corporation shall consist of the following:

1. Archery
2. Black Powder
3. Cowboy Action Shooting



4. High Power Rifle
5. Junior
6. Pistol Silhouette
7. Practical Pistol
8. Small Bore Rifle Silhouette
9. High Power Rifle Silhouette
10. Three Position Small Bore
11. Shotgun/trap/skeet/sporting clays

**SECTION 2. Additional Committees:** The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted at a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall have the authority to create additional committees or divisions of this corporation upon application of at least ten (10) members of this corporation who compete together on a regular basis.

## **ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES**

**SECTION 1. Committees of Directors:** The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office may designate and appoint one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors. These committees to the extent provided in said resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation, except that no such committee shall have the authority of the Board of Directors in reference to amending, altering, or repealing the Bylaws, electing, appointing or removing any member of any such committee or any Director or officer of the corporation, amending the articles of incorporation, adopting a plan of merger or adopting a plan of consolidation with another corporation, authorizing the sale, lease, exchange or mortgage of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation; authorizing the voluntary dissolution of the corporation, or revoking proceedings therefore; adopting a plan for the distribution of the assets of the corporation; or amending, altering, or repealing any resolution of the Board of Directors which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended altered or repealed by such committee. The designation and appointment of any such committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual Director, of any responsibility imposed upon it or him by law.

**SECTION 2. Other Committees:** Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation may be appointed in such manner as may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Except as otherwise provided in such resolution, members of each such committee shall be members of the corporation, and the President of the corporation shall appoint the members thereof. Any member thereof may be removed by the person or persons authorized to appoint such member whenever in their judgment the best interests of the corporation shall be served by such removal.

**SECTION 3. Term of Office:** Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the members of the corporation and until his or her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner terminated or unless such member ceases to qualify as a member thereof.

**SECTION 4. Chairman:** One member of each committee shall be appointed Chairman by the President.

**SECTION 5. Vacancies:** Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made by the President.

**SECTION 6. Quorum:** Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

**SECTION 7. Rules:** Each committee may adopt rules for its own operation not inconsistent with these Bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

**SECTION 8. Other Board Appointees:** Range Masters, Match Directors, and other personnel may be appointed by the President or by a Committee of Directors to conduct club activities. Said appointees shall have a duty to enforce safety considerations, promote an atmosphere conducive to competitive events, and present the club and sporting community in an appropriate fashion.

**SECTION 9. Removal:** Any committee member may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the member so removed.

## ARTICLE IX

### CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS

**SECTION 1. Contracts:** The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Any Board decision to authorize payments or special compensation shall be rigorously reviewed to preclude even the appearance of conflict of interest.

**SECTION 2. Checks, Drafts, etc.:** All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer. If the treasurer is unavailable, instruments shall be signed by the President and the Vice-President.

**SECTION 3. Deposits:** All funds of the corporation shall be deposited in a timely manner to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

**SECTION 4. Gifts:** The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the corporation.

**SECTION 5. Audit of Corporate Books:** A qualified accountant shall be designated as auditor by the Board of Directors prior to the corporation's close of business for each fiscal year, to audit and examine the books of account of the corporation and to certify and report in writing to the Board of Directors and Members the annual balances and condition of such books as prepared at the close of the fiscal year, under the direction of the Treasurer. No director or officer of the company and no firm or corporation of which any Officer or Director of the corporation is a member, shall be eligible to serve as auditor. The compensation of the auditors shall be determined by agreement between the Board of Directors and the auditing firm at any time of its employment and the terms of the employment, including compensation, reduced to writing. This formal audit shall be conducted every five (5) years.

**SECTION 6. Monthly Report:** The Board of Directors shall cause a monthly report and financial statement to be prepared by the Treasurer or the firm of accountants retained pursuant to Section 5 hereof not later than fifteen (15) days following the last day of each month. This report shall include a balance sheet and statement of income and expense for the previous month, prepared from and in accordance with the books of the corporation.

## ARTICLE X

### CERTIFICATES OF MEMBERSHIP

**SECTION 1. Certificates of Membership:** The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of certificates evidencing membership in the corporation, which shall be in such form as may be determined by the Board. Such certificates shall be signed by the President. All certificates evidencing membership of any class shall be consecutively numbered. The name and address of each member and the date of issuance of the certificate shall be entered on the records of the corporation. If any certificate shall become lost, mutilated, or destroyed, a new certificate may be issued therefore upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors determine.

**SECTION 2. Issuance of Certificates:** When a member has been elected to membership and has made an annual contribution, then a certificate of membership should be issued in his name and delivered to him by the Secretary, if the Board of Directors shall have provided for the issuance of certificates of membership under the provisions of Section 1 of this Article X.

**ARTICLE XI  
BOOKS AND RECORDS**

The corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members. The corporation also shall keep at its registered or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote. All books and records of the corporation may be inspected by any member, or his agent or attorney, for any proper purpose at any reasonable time. At no time will any member or non-member use the Northeastern Arizona Sportsman's Association logo or name without prior written consent by the Board of Directors. Any violation of this will be grounds for immediate dismissal from the club and/or potential legal action. There will be no separate clubs operating under Northeastern Arizona Sportsman's Association; however, there will be committees thereof.

**ARTICLE XII  
FISCAL YEAR**

The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end on the last day of December in each year.

**ARTICLE XIII  
CONTRIBUTIONS**

**SECTION 1. Annual Contributions:** The Board of Directors may determine from time to time the amount of initiation fee, if any, and annual contribution payable to the corporation by members of each class.

**SECTION 2. Contributions:** The membership year shall be from May 1<sup>st</sup> to April 30<sup>th</sup>. In the event that a member's annual contribution is delinquent on May 15<sup>th</sup>, his or her membership privileges shall be suspended until the current year's contribution is paid in full.

**ARTICLE XIV  
SEAL**

The Board of Directors shall provide a Corporate Seal.

**ARTICLE XV  
WAIVER OF NOTICE**

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Arizona Non-Profit Corporation Act or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

**ARTICLE XVI  
MATCH RULES**

All rifle, shotgun, handgun, and archery competitive contests held by this corporation will be governed by the Rules and Regulations laid down by one or more of the following organizations:

1. The National Rifle Association of America
2. Corporation for the Promotion of Rifle Practice and Firearms Safety
3. The Secretary of the Army
4. The International Shooting Union
5. The International Practical Shooting Confederation
6. The United States Practical Shooting Association
7. The World Speed Shooting Association
8. The International Handgun Metallic Silhouette Association
9. The National Field Archery Association
10. The Single Action Shooting Society
11. The National Muzzle Loading Rifle Association
12. Any other recognized governing body approved by the Board of Directors

**ARTICLE XVII  
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT**

**SECTION 1. Equipment:** All equipment owned by Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association shall be kept at a location designated by the Board of Directors and used only for official activities. At no time shall Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association equipment be in the personal possession of a private individual or entity, unless previously agreed to by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors retains the right to revoke any such agreement at any regular or special meeting.

**SECTION 2. Registered Owner:** At no time shall any equipment owned by Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association be registered in any other name than "Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association, Inc.", unless prohibited by law. If equipment must originally be registered in a private person or entity's name, ownership records must immediately thereafter be updated to show the lawful owner as "Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association, Inc."

**ARTICLE XVIII  
AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES AND BYLAWS**

The Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds (2/3<sup>rd</sup>) majority of the Directors present at any regular meeting or special meeting called for such purpose, if at least thirty (30) days written notice is given of intention to amend or repeal the

Articles or the Bylaws at such meeting. Further, a copy of the language to be contained in the proposed amendments or repeal shall be delivered to each Board Member at least ten (10) days prior to any such meeting, although the Directors may change any such proposed language at the meeting before the adoption of such change. Directors are prohibited from amending or repealing any section of the Articles or Bylaws unless a proposed amendment or notice of repeal of the section to be changed has been given at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting. The amended bylaws shall be recorded with the Apache County Recorder's Office within twenty (20) days of the Board of Directors adopting the amendments, and are not official until recorded.

The foregoing Bylaws were duly amended and adopted the 13<sup>th</sup> day of December, 2013.

Northeastern Arizona Sportsmans Association

---

Bobby Honea – President

---

Bowen Udall – Vice President

---

Ben File – Treasurer

---

Wiley Barnes - Director

---

Katrina Watkins – Director

---

Rene Green - Director

Attest:

---

Pat Hall - Secretary